
 

 

www.eden.gov.uk         

Paul Sutton 
Interim Director of Corporate 
Services 

Date: 3 November 2020 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 

Licensing Committee Agenda - 11 November 2020 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the Licensing Committee will be held at 9.30 am 
on Wednesday, 11 November 2020. 
 
This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in a physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.  
 
To view this meeting online follow this link 
 

1   Apologies for Absence   
 

2   Minutes   
 

RECOMMENDATION that the public minutes Lic/22/08/20 to Lic/28/08/20 of the 
meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 05 August 2020 be confirmed and 
approved by the Chairman as a correct record of those proceedings (copies 
previously circulated) 
 

3   Declarations of Interest   
 

To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary and any other registrable interests, in any matter to be 
considered or being considered.. 

 

4   Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy  (Pages 5 - 
58) 
 

To consider report PP39/20 which seeks consideration to be given to the response 
to the consultation on the proposed amendments to the Statement of Licensing 
Policy and the Licensing Committee’s support to approve the amended policy. 
 
RECOMMENDATION that Council be recommended to approve the draft revised 
Statement of Licensing Policy as set out at Appendix A to this report. 
 

5   Any Other Items which the Chairman decides are urgent   
 

6   Date of Next Scheduled Meeting   

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWVkMWUzZDgtYWNiMC00NzNjLTk1NDctZDVlNDYxMTljNzU3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ec1905dd-41df-44af-849e-983e6ce809bf%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2231d773a5-d81e-41d0-ac68-e2c3dd881da5%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


www.eden.gov.uk 2 

 

No formal meeting of the Licensing Committee has been scheduled but, if 
necessary, a meeting will be held on the first Wednesday of the month. 
 

7   Exclusion of the Press and Public   
 

To consider whether, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, members of the public (including the press) should be excluded from the 
meeting during discussion of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1 of 
Part 1 to Schedule 12A of the Act 
 

8   Revocation or Suspension of a Personal Licence  (Pages 59 - 64) 
 

To consider report PP38/20 of Assistant Director Community Services which seeks 
to outline all the relevant considerations to enable Committee to decide how to 
exercise their powers under the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of a personal licence 
holder who has been convicted of a relevant offence. 
 
RECOMMENDATION that the Committee, having considered the matters set out in 
this report, decide whether or not to revoke or suspend the personal licence for a 
period of up to six months. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 
 

 
 
P Sutton 
Interim Director of Corporate Services 
 
Democratic Services Contact: Karen Wyeth  
 
 
Encs 
 
For Attention 
All members of the Council 
 
Chairman – Councillor D Holden (Liberal Democrat Group) 
Vice Chairman – Councillor W Patterson (Independent Group) 
 
Councillors 

P G Baker, Liberal Democrat Group 
H Fearon, Conservative Group 
M Hanley, Labour Group 
L Harker, Liberal Democrat Group 

E Martin, Conservative Group 
A Meadowcroft, Conservative Group 
J Raine, Conservative Group 
H Sawrey-Cookson, Independent Group 



www.eden.gov.uk 3 

  

 
Standing Deputies 

I Chambers, Conservative Group 
M Clark, Independent Group 
M Eyles, Liberal Democrat Group 
J C Lynch, Conservative Group 
A Ross, Green Group 
 

D Ryland, Independent Group 
G Simpkins, Liberal Democrat Group 
D Smith, Liberal Democrat Group 
J G Thompson, Conservative Group 
 

Please Note:  
1. Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020 and the Local Authorities and Police 

and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings)(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 mean that this 
meeting of Eden District Council is classed as a virtual meeting.  

2. Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 this 
meeting has been advertised as a public meeting (unless stated otherwise) 
and as such could be filmed or recorded by the media or members of the 
public 



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: PP39/20 
Eden District Council 
Licensing Committee 

11 November 2020 
Council 

26 November 2020 

Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Statement of Licensing 
Policy 

Portfolio: Resources 
Report from: Assistant Director Community Services 
Wards: All Wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 
1.1 To enable consideration to be given to the response to the consultation on the 

proposed amendments to the Statement of Licensing Policy and to seek 
Licensing Committee’s support and Council’s formal resolution to approve the 
amended policy. 

2 Recommendation 
2.1 Licensing Committee 

That Council be recommended to approve the draft revised Statement of 
Licensing Policy as set out at Appendix A to this report. 

2.2 Council 
That approval be given to the draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy as 
set out at Appendix A to this report. 

3 Report Details 
3.1 Section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) requires a licensing authority to 

determine and publish a Statement of its Licensing Policy at least once every 
five years. The policy must be published before it carries out any licensing 
functions under the Act. The current Statement of Licensing Policy was 
approved by Council on 3 December 2015 and subsequently published for the 
period 7 January 2016 to 6 January 2021. The revised policy needs to be 
published by 7 January 2021. 

3.2 The Statement of Licensing Policy sets out how the authority will undertake its 
duties towards licensing the sale and supply of alcohol, provision of regulated 
entertainment and late night refreshment and its general approach to making 
decisions which are consistent with the provisions in the Act and guidance 
issued to licensing authorities under Section 182 of the Act. It attempts to 
strike a balance by encouraging a vibrant leisure and entertainment economy 
whilst protecting the rights of residents and others who may be unreasonably 
affected by licensable activities. 

Page  5

Agenda Item 4



3.3 The policy has been reviewed in accordance with guidance in the current 
pandemic that the existing policy be retained with any obvious amendments. 
Only minor amendments have been required to bring the policy up to date. 
These relate, in the main, to legislative changes regarding the right to work in 
the UK and powers for licensing authorities to suspend or revoke a personal 
licence when the holder has been convicted of a relevant offence. Members’ 
approval is therefore sought for the draft revised Statement of Licensing 
Policy as set out at Appendix A to this report showing the tracked changes 
which have been made. 

3.4 The Table of Delegated Functions in Appendix 1 at Appendix A, which is 
taken from the guidance issued under Section 182 of the Act, was updated to 
remove application for personal licence with unspent convictions to be dealt 
with by Sub-Committee in all cases. This was removed following a query 
raised by the Licensing Officer with the Home Office in March 2020 as the 
legislation provides that, if no objection is raised by the police or Home Office 
(Immigration Enforcement), the application must be granted. The Home Office 
responded that their guidance was incorrect and should not suggest that a 
hearing is required in all cases and would be amended when the guidance is 
next updated. A copy of that response is attached at Appendix B to this report. 

4 Policy Framework 
4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 
 Healthy, safe and secure; 
 Connected; and 
 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the healthy, safe and secure corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 
5.1 Before determining its policy, the licensing authority must consult with the 

persons listed in section 5(3) of the Act which includes the chief officer of 
police, the fire and rescue authority, the Director of Public Health, 
persons/bodies representative of local premises licence holders, local club 
premises certificate holders, local personal licence holders and business and 
residents in the area. 

5.2 Consultation on the draft revised Statement of Licensing Policy took place 
between 23 July 2020 and 15 October 2020. The list of people consulted is 
available at Appendix 4 to the draft Statement of Licensing Policy at Appendix 
A to this report. The draft Statement of Licensing Policy was also published on 
the Council’s website during the consultation period. 

5.3 A response to the consultation was received on 14 October 2020 from Punch 
Pubs, a national operator with 8 premises in our District, and this is attached 
at Appendix C to this report. Whilst some of the points made are general, 
others are more specific and have not thus far been an issue in our District 
where relatively few new/variation applications are received and objections to 
these applications, as well as applications to review existing licences, are 
infrequent. The response may therefore be considered not to affect the policy 
which, at this time, has been reviewed to retain the existing policy with 

Page  6



obvious amendments. A more detailed review can be carried out, if 
necessary, within the five-year cycle. 

6 Implications 
6.1 Financial and Resources 
6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 

must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 There are no proposals in this report that would reduce or increase resources. 
6.2 Legal 
6.2.1 Section 5 of the Act requires a licensing authority to prepare and publish a 

Statement of its Licensing Policy at least every five years. Such a policy must 
be published before the authority carries out any function in respect of 
individual applications and notices made under the terms of the Act. During 
the five-year period, the policy must be kept under review and the licensing 
authority may make any revisions to it as it considers appropriate, for instance 
in the light of feedback from the local community on whether the licensing 
objectives are being met. If the licensing authority determines and publishes 
its policy in this way, a new five-year period commences on the date it is 
published. 

6.2.2 Approval of the policy statement is a Council function. 
6.3 Human Resources 
6.3.1 There are no Human Resources implications arising out of the policy review. 
6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity The Council has to have regard to the elimination of 
unlawful discrimination and harassment and the 
promotion of equality under the Equality Act 2010 
and related statutes. There are no proposals within 
this report that would have any detrimental effect on 
people with a protected characteristic. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

In its Statement of Licensing Policy the Council has 
had regard to reducing anti-social behaviour. This 
should have a positive impact on health and social 
cohesion and assist the Council in upholding the 
public safety and prevention of public nuisance 
licensing objectives. 

Crime and Disorder In accordance with the Crime and Disorder Act 
1998, the Council has had regard for the need to 
reduce crime and disorder in exercising its functions. 
Proper implementation of the Statement of Licensing 
Policy should assist the Council in upholding the 
prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective. 

Page  7



Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

Under the Children Act 2004, the Council has to 
have regard to the need to safeguard and promote 
the welfare of children in the exercise of any of its 
functions. Proper implementation of the Statement 
of Licensing Policy should assist the Council in 
upholding the protection of children from harm 
licensing objective. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 
There is a risk that the 
Council will be in breach of 
its statutory duty and/or a 
reputational risk if it fails to 
prepare and publish a 
Statement of Licensing 
Policy in accordance with 
the legislation. 

The Council would be 
unable to fulfil its duty 
as a licensing authority 
without a valid 
Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 

The Council 
ensures publication 
of the revised 
Statement of 
Licensing Policy by 
7 January 2021. 

7 Other Options Considered 
7.1 As failure to update and publish the Statement of Licensing Policy would 

mean that the Council would be unable to fulfil its duty as a licensing authority, 
no alternative options are suggested. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 
8.1 To ensure that the Council complies with its duty under the Act to publish a 

Statement of Licensing Policy that it will apply in exercising its functions under 
the Act. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 
Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy) 28 October 2020 
Monitoring Officer (or Deputy) 28 October 2020 
Relevant Director 28 October 2020 

Background Papers:  
Appendices: Appendix A Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 
 Appendix B Response from Home Office dated 6 April 

2020 
 Appendix C Response to Consultation from Punch Pubs 
Contact Officer: Robert Docherty, Assistant Director Community Services 
 Telephone: 01768 212328 

Page  8



 

 

 

Licensing Act 2003 

Statement of 
Licensing Policy 

For the period 7 January 2021 - 6 January 2026 
 

Appendix A 

Page  9



 

2 

Eden District Council 
Licensing Authority 

Statement of Licensing Policy 

Table of Contents 

 

1 Introduction .................................................................................................... 3 

2 Fundamental Principles ................................................................................. 6 

3 Personal Licences .......................................................................................... 8 

4 Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates .............................................. 9 

5 Complaints/Review of Licences ................................................................... 30 

6 Enforcement ................................................................................................ 31 

7 Permitted Temporary Activities .................................................................... 32 

8 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions ................................. 33 

Appendix 1 - Table of Delegated Functions ....................................................... 35 

Appendix 2 - Appeals Procedure ....................................................................... 36 

Appendix 3 - Guides of Best Practice ................................................................ 37 

Appendix 4 - List of Consultees ......................................................................... 38 

Appendix 5 - Responsible Authority Addresses ................................................. 39 

Page  10



 

3 

1 Introduction 
1.1 The Licensing Act 2003 regulates the licensable activities on licensed 

premises, by qualifying clubs and at temporary events. 

1.2 Eden District Council is a Licensing Authority (the Authority) for the purposes 
of the Act. The Authority must carry out its licensing functions with a view to 
promoting the four licensing objectives, which are: 

 the prevention of crime and disorder; 
 public safety; 
 the prevention of public nuisance; and 
 the protection of children from harm. 

1.3 The Act makes provision about the regulation of four licensable activities, 
which are: 

 the sale by retail of alcohol 
 the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a 

member of the club 
 the provision of regulated entertainment 
 the provision of late night refreshment 

1.4 Regulated Entertainment is: 

 a performance of a play 
 an exhibition of a film 
 an indoor sporting event 
 a boxing or wrestling entertainment 
 a performance of live music 
 any playing of recorded music 
 a performance of dance 
 any other entertainment of a similar description to the music and dance 

categories above 
1.5 Late Night Refreshment is: 

 the supply, on or from any premises, of hot food or hot drink to the 
public for consumption on or off the premises between the hours of 
11pm and 5am 

1.6 Applicants are referred to the provisions of the Act for further information on 
licensable activities including limitations and exemptions. 

1.7 Section 5 of the Act requires the Authority to determine its policy for a five 
year period with respect to the exercise of its licensing functions under the 
Act and revise its policy every five years. It is required to publish a statement 
of that policy and this document is that statement. The policy is to be kept 
under review and shall be revised at such times as the Authority considers 
appropriate. 

1.8 Prior to determining its licensing policy, the Authority consulted with various 
persons and organisations. The consultees are set out in Appendix 4. The 

Page  11



 

4 

Authority is grateful for all of the representations it received. The Authority will 
also consult as required prior to revising its licensing policy. 

1.9 In determining its policy, the Authority considered the provisions of the Act 
and had particular regard to: 

 the licensing objectives 
 the guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the Act 
 the representations made following consultation 
 its duties and obligations under other legislation, including: 

 The Equality Act 2010 which places a legal obligation on public 
authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, harassment and victimisation; to advance equality 
of opportunity and to foster good relations between persons with 
different protected characteristics - age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, 
sex and sexual orientation. 

 The Human Rights Act 1998 incorporates the European 
Convention on Human Rights and makes it unlawful for a local 
authority to act in a way that is incompatible with a Convention 
right. The Council will have particular regard to the following 
relevant provisions of the European Convention on Human 
Rights: 
- Article 6 that in the determination of civil rights and 

obligations everyone is entitled to a fair and public hearing 
within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial 
tribunal established by law; 

- Article 8 that everyone has the right to respect for his home 
and private life; and 

- Article 1 of the First Protocol that every person is entitled to 
the peaceful enjoyment of his or her possessions, including 
for example the possession of a licence. 

 The Race Relations Act 1976, as amended by the Race Relations 
(Amendment) Act 2000, places a legal obligation on our Authority 
to have due regard to eliminate unlawful discrimination; and to 
promote equality of opportunity and good relations between 
persons of different racial groups. Eden District Council is 
committed to carry out extensive work to ensure that the Council 
meets the requirements of the Race Relations legislation. 

 The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 - section 17 of that Act imposes 
a duty on local authorities to exercise their functions with regard 
to the impact on crime and disorder and the need to do all it 
reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

1.10 In addition to its powers under the Act, there is also a range of other 
legislation which is relevant to the provisions of this Act. This includes: 

Page  12



 

5 

 Health and Safety at Work Etc Act 1974 
 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
 Environmental Protection Act 1990 
 Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 
 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (as amended by the Police and Justice 

Act 2006) 
 Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 
 Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 
 Health Act 2006 
 Policing and Crime Act 2009 
 Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 
 Live Music 2012 
 Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 
 Deregulation Act 2015 
 Immigration Act 2016 
 Policing and Crime Act 2017 

(This is not an exhaustive list) 

1.11 The Authority will seek to use the full range of its powers in promoting the 
licensing objectives. Some relevant legislation gives powers to the police and 
other authorities to act. The Authority will seek to work in partnership with 
those authorities, as well as with businesses and other parties, to promote 
the licensing objectives. 

1.12 If representations are made, conditions may be imposed on licences and 
certificates where they are necessary for the promotion of one or more of the 
four licensing objectives. These will be focussed on matters which are within 
the control of individual licensees and others granted relevant authorisations. 
If no representations are made the only conditions that will be attached to a 
licence will be those that are consistent with the Operating Schedule and 
statutory conditions under the 2003 Act. 

1.13 The Authority has been careful to avoid duplication with other regulatory 
regimes in formulating its policy and will seek to avoid duplication in the 
exercise of its licensing functions. There will be free exchange of information 
between the relevant Authority staff and relevant committees (including, for 
example, the planning applications committee). Applicants are encouraged to 
make any necessary applications for planning permission at the same time 
as they make an application for a licence. 

1.14 The policy statements in this document are for the guidance of applicants in 
preparing applications and for those affected by proposals. They set out the 
usual stance that the Authority will take in relation to applications. For 
applicants’ information, the reasons why policies have been adopted have 
often been summarised after the policy. The ‘reasons’ are given for 
information only and do not form part of the policy. Brief summaries of the 
law have also often been included for guidance and ease of reference only; 
they are not intended to be either comprehensive or definitive. 

1.15 Applicants are encouraged to discuss their circumstances/proposals with 
officers from the Authority and other responsible authorities prior to 

Page  13



 

6 

submission of an application for a licence. Applicants are also encouraged to 
inform local residents and businesses of their intentions. It is hoped that this 
will help to minimise the possibility that relevant representations will be made 
objecting to the proposals. In this way, the Authority and applicants will best 
be able to affect the grant of licences, which meet applicants’ requirements 
whilst promoting the licensing objectives. 

1.16 Applications (including all accompanying documents) must be in the 
prescribed form and must meet all of the requirements of the Act. 

1.17 Failure to submit an application in the correct form will result in that 
application being returned. The Authority will endeavour to explain why the 
application is considered to be deficient and will invite the applicant to re-
submit the application with all the required information. 

1.18 The Act limits the representations which can be made about licence 
applications and who can make such representations. Essentially, 
representations must relate to one or more of the licensing objectives and 
may be made by any individual, body or business or by someone 
representing such persons. Anyone considering making an objection is 
invited to discuss their objection with licensing officers prior to submitting 
their representation. 

1.19 In this document: 

 “the Act” means the Licensing Act 2003 
 “the Authority” means the Licensing Authority, namely Eden District 

Council 
 “the District” means the area within the Authority’s jurisdiction 
 Unless indicated to the contrary the words and phrases defined in the 

Act shall have the meanings given in the Act when used in this 
document. 

 Any reference to the grant of a licence, certificate or provisional 
statement shall, unless the context indicates or it is specifically stated 
otherwise, include reference to the variation or , review or renewal of a 
licence. 

 Policies in relation to premises licences shall also apply to provisional 
statements and club premises certificates unless it is expressly stated 
to the contrary or the context indicates otherwise. 

 The Authority shall not rely upon those paragraphs entitled “Reason”. 
These are included to explain why the Authority reached a particular 
policy decision. 

 Words denoting any gender shall include all genders, words in the 
singular shall include the plural and vice versa, and words denoting 
persons shall include firms and corporations. 

2 Fundamental Principles 
2.1 The policy will promote the four licensing objectives contained in the Act, 

namely the prevention of crime and disorder, public safety, the prevention of 
public nuisance and the protection of children from harm. 

Page  14



 

7 

2.2 Nothing in the Statement of Licensing Policy will undermine the rights of any 
person to apply under the Act for a variety of permissions and have their 
application considered on its individual merits as well as against the relevant 
policy and statutory framework. It does not override the right of any person to 
make representations on any application or to seek a review of a licence or 
certificate where they are permitted to do so under the Act. 

2.3 All licensing applications will be determined on their individual merits 
following consideration of the proposals in the application and any relevant 
representations. In general, licences will be granted on the terms applied for 
but licences will not normally be granted in terms which conflict with any of 
the policies in this document unless an applicant is able to demonstrate that 
the exceptional circumstances of their application justify a departure from the 
policy. The Authority will not depart from the policy if any of the licensing 
objectives will be undermined by a proposal in the application. 

2.4 Licensing is about the control of licensed premises, qualifying clubs and 
temporary events within the terms of the Act. The licensing function cannot 
be used for the general control of anti-social behaviour once consumers are 
beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business holding the 
licence, certificate or other authorisation concerned. However, the Authority 
expects every holder of a licence, certificate or permission to make every 
effort to minimise the impact of their activities and anti-social behaviour by 
their patrons within the immediate vicinity of their premises. 

2.5 The Authority is keen to promote the artistic and cultural life of the District 
and licensing will be approached with a view to encouraging cultural activities 
and innovative forms of public entertainment for the wider cultural benefits of 
communities generally. Only conditions strictly necessary for the promotion of 
the licensing objectives will be attached to a licence for activities of this 
nature as the Authority is aware of the need to avoid imposing substantial 
indirect costs. Where there is any indication that licensing requirements are 
deterring such events, the policy may be reviewed with a view to 
investigating how the situation may be remedied. 

2.6 The Authority aims to create a safe and family friendly environment within the 
District, particularly within the town centres. Applicants should give 
consideration to this when preparing their operating schedules. 

2.7 However, the Authority expects that designated premises supervisors should 
normally be on the premises when alcohol is supplied. Where they are 
absent from the premises they will still be ultimately responsible for the 
actions of those they authorise to permit sales of alcohol. It is considered 
good practice that any such authorisations should be in writing. Where any 
person who does not hold a personal licence is authorised to sell alcohol, the 
Designated Premises Supervisor is encouraged to provide, or ensure that, 
the person has some training on the requirements of the Act and any 
conditions attached to the licence. It is recommended that a record of such 
training is maintained. 

Page  15



 

8 

2.8 The Authority is aware that different areas and premises within the District 
have different characteristics and where possible will ensure that licence 
conditions reflect these. In particular: 

 villages of a more quiet and rural nature 
 urban centres, particularly where redevelopment is being encouraged 
 village halls and community type premises which are the centre of the 

community and run effectively by volunteers 
2.9 The Authority recognises that there is a need to disperse people from town 

and city centres swiftly and safely to avoid concentrations which produce 
disorder. The Licensing Committee will report any concerns to the local 
transport Authority identified in the Local Plan. 

2.10 The Licensing Committee will consider wider issues which may need to be 
given due consideration and will periodically receive reports on: 

 needs of the local tourist economy 
 cultural strategy for the area 
 employment situation in the area and the need for new investment and 

employment where appropriate 

3 Personal Licences 
The Law (Part 6 of the Act) 

3.1 A personal licence is a licence granted to an individual, which authorises that 
individual to supply alcohol or authorise the supply of alcohol. 

3.2 A person should submit an application for a personal licence to the Licensing 
Authority for the area in which they are ordinarily resident. 

3.3 The requirement to renew personal licences was abolished by Section 69 of 
the Deregulation Act 2015. 

3.4 An applicant for a personal licence must be aged 18 or over and must 
possess a licensing qualification accredited at the time of its award and no 
personal licence held by him must have been forfeited in the period of five 
years ending with the date of his application (section 120(2) of the Act). 

3.5 The Authority will require all applicants to produce a criminal records 
certificate and, from 6 April 2017, evidence of right to work in the UK. Where 
an applicant’s immigration permission to live and work in the UK is time-
limited, a licence may still be granted, but it will become invalid when the 
immigration permission expires. 

3.6 TOnly the police or Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) may object to the 
grant of a personal licence to an individual. Such an objection can only be 
made where the applicant has been convicted of a relevant offence or any 
foreign offence or has received a civil penalty after 6 April 2017 and the 
police or Home Office consider that the grant of a licence would undermine 
the crime prevention objective. 

3.7 The Policing and Crime Act 2017 gives licensing authorities from 6 April 2017 
the power to revoke or suspend personal licences where a licence has 

Page  16



 

9 

already been granted and the Authority becomes aware that the licence 
holder has been convicted of a relevant offence or a foreign offence or has 
been required to pay an immigration penalty. 

3.87 Policy 

Provided that the applicant meets the requirements of section 120 (2) (a), (b) 
and (c) of the Act, the application of an individual for a personal licence will 
be granted.  save that Iif the applicant is found to have an unspent conviction 
for a relevant offence or for a foreign offence or has received a civil penalty 
after 6 April 2017has been convicted of a relevant offence which is unspent 
under the Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974, and the chief officer of police 
or Home Office has given the Authority an objection notice, a licence will not 
normally be granted unless the applicant can demonstrate that the grant to 
him of a personal licence would not undermine the crime and disorder 
prevention objective. In considering the a new application or licence already 
granted, the Authority will afford the applicant a right to a hearing before its 
Licensing Committee or a sub-committee of the Licensing Committee. 
Applicants are referred to Section 8 of this document, dealing with the 
exercise and delegation of functions. The factors that the Council will take 
into account when considering representations in this matter include (but are 
not limited to) the following: 

 the nature and type of the offence 
 how long ago the offence was committed 
 how serious the offence was 
 whether the offence was premeditated or was the result of a genuine 

mistake 
 whether the applicant abused a position of trust when he committed the 

offence 
 whether the offence was motivated by discrimination 
 the conduct of the applicant since commission of the offence 
Reason 

The Authority has a duty when exercising its licensing functions to promote 
the prevention of crime and disorder and the other licensing objectives. 
Unless the circumstances are exceptional, granting a licence to an individual 
with a relevant conviction would undermine the Authority’s ability to promote 
the crime prevention objective. Personal licence holders are expected to act 
in accordance with the law and will be key to ensuring that the provisions of 
the Act, and any conditions attached to a premises licence, are complied 
with. The Authority also has a duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 
have regard to the effect on crime and disorder of the exercise of any of its 
functions and to do all it can to prevent such crime and disorder. 

4 Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates 
Unless the context indicates to the contrary, the policies in this section shall 
relate to the grant of a premises licence, the issue of a provisional statement 
and the grant of a club premises certificate.

Page  17



 

10 

 

4.1 The Law 
Premises Licence (Part 3 of the Act): 

A premises licence authorises the use of premises for one or more of the 
licensable activities. Premises may be any place including a piece of land. 
Applications can be made for a premises licence for any premises situated in 
the District. 

4.1.1 An application for a premises licence will be required for large temporary 
events, which are outside the provisions relating to temporary event notices. 
(See also Paragraph 7) 

4.1.2 Individuals, companies, charities and other specified persons and 
organisations may make applications. An individual may not apply unless he 
is aged 18 years or over. 

4.1.3 An application can be made to the Authority for any place used for licensable 
activities or recognised club activities within its area and the application must 
be accompanied by: 

 the required fee 
 an Operating Schedule 
 a plan of the premises 
 if it is intended to sell alcohol, a form of consent given by the person the 

applicant wishes to have specified in the Premises Licence as the 
Premises Supervisor, unless the application .is for community premises 
in respect of which a successful application has been made to disapply 
the usual mandatory conditions set out in section 19 of the Act. 

4.1.4 The applicant will also be required to notify, and enclose a copy of the 
application and relevant attachments, all Responsible Authorities for the 
Eden District Council Licensing Authority area. These include: 

 The Chief Officer of Police, Cumbria Constabulary 
 The Chief Fire Officer, Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service 
 Food, Health and Safety Team and Environmental Protection, Eden 

District Council 
 Health and Safety Executive (where appropriate) 
 Development Control, Planning Services, Eden District Council/Lake 

District National Park/Yorkshire Dales National Park 
 Children’s Services, Carlisle 
 Trading Standards, Cumbria County Council, Carlisle 
 Director of Public Health, Cumbria County Council, Carlisle 
 Home Office Immigration Enforcement, Croydon 
 Any Licensing Authority in whose area part of the premises is situated. 
 In relation to a vessel the appropriate Authority: 

 The Maritime and Coastguard Agency 
 The Environment Agency 
 The British Waterways Board 

Page  18



 

11 

(Responsible Authorities may require risk assessments and other 
documentation to be provided.) See Appendix 5 for contact addresses. 

4.1.5 All applications must be in the prescribed form and include all necessary 
documents. Applications may be in writing or sent electronically via Business 
Link or the licensing authority’s own electronic application facility. Those 
requirements are set out in Section 17 of the Act. Particularly important is the 
operating schedule, which must include a statement of the following matters: 

 the relevant licensable activities 
 the times during which it is proposed that the relevant licensable 

activities are to take place 
 any other times when it is proposed that the premises are to be open to 

the public 
 where the applicant wishes the licence to have effect for a limited 

period, that period 
 where the relevant licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, 

prescribed information in respect of the individual whom the applicant 
wishes to have specified in the premises licence as the premises 
supervisor 

 where the relevant licensable activities include the supply of alcohol, 
whether the supplies are proposed to be for consumption on the 
premises or off the premises or both 

 the steps which it is proposed to take to promote the licensing 
objectives 

 such other matters as may be prescribed 
4.1.6 Applicants will be required to advertise and give notice of their applications in 

the manner prescribed by Regulations. 

4.1.7 Large Scale Events 

The Licensing Authority would expect organisers of any large scale events 
over 499 people, where licensable activities are to take place, to prepare an 
event management plan incorporating risk assessments. 

The organisers must should contact the Licensing Authority at least three 
months prior to the event, in order that consideration can be given to forming 
a Safety Advisory Group (SAG). 

4.1.8 Club Premises Certificate (Part 4 of the Act): 

The Authority may issue a “Club Premises Certificate” to a qualifying Club. 
The Certificate will specify that the premises may be used for one or more of 
the ‘qualifying club activities’ and that the Club is a qualifying Club in relation 
to each of those activities. 

4.1.9 The qualifying Club activities are: 

 the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the Club to, or to the order of, a 
member of the Club; 

 the sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a Club to a guest or a 
member of the Club; 

Page  19



 

12 

 the provision of regulated entertainment where that provision is by or on 
behalf of the Club for members of the Club or members of the Club and 
their guests. 

4.1.10 The Club is a qualifying Club in respect of the qualifying activities provided 
that, under the rules of the Club, 

 a person may not be admitted to membership, or be admitted as a 
candidate for membership, to any of the privileges of membership 
without an interval of at least two days between their nomination or 
application for membership or their admission, or 

 people becoming members without nomination or prior application may 
not be admitted to the privileges of membership without an interval of 
two days between them becoming members and their admission, and 

 the Club is established and conducted in good faith as a Club, and 

 it has a minimum of 25 members. 

4.2 General Policy 
4.2.1 Consideration of the impact of licensable activities. 

4.2.2 If representations are made when considering an application for a licence, 
the Authority should take into account the following factors in assessing its 
likely impact on the licensing objectives in addition to other relevant matters: 

 the nature of activities proposed; 
 the number of customers likely to attend the premises and the nature of 

the activities expected; 
 the location of the premises; 
 the proposed hours of operation; 
 the level of public transport accessibility for customers either arriving at 

or leaving the premises and the likely means of public or private 
transport that will be used by the customers; 

 the physical and accessible nature of the premises; 
 the level of likely car parking demand in relation to the use of the 

premises in comparison with the existing situation and the likely effect 
on the movement of priority traffic; 

 the cumulative impact of licensed premises in an area; 
 the scope for mitigating any impact; 
 how often the activity is to occur. 

4.2.3 In considering any application where premises are already licensed, or have 
in the past been licensed for any of the licensable activities (under this or 
previous legislation), the Authority will take into account any evidence from a 
Responsible Authority or any other person of demonstrable adverse impact 
from the activity in the past and, if adverse impact has been caused, whether 
appropriate measures have been proposed or put into effect by the applicant 
to mitigate that adverse impact. The Authority will also consider any changes 
of circumstances since the past problems occurred.

Page  20



 

13 

 

Reason 

The prime purpose of this policy is to promote the licensing objectives. In 
furtherance of this aim the policy lists particular matters that the Authority will 
take into account in considering whether a licensed activity is likely to cause 
an adverse impact. 

The aim of the policy is, therefore, to achieve a balanced approach to these 
issues. 

4.2.4 The Authority will support the provision of culture, arts and sport such as 
music, theatre, street art, circuses and indoor sporting events and will 
encourage the Council and Parish Councils to seek premises licences for 
public spaces within the community in their own name. 

Reason 

The policy statements in this document have been prepared following 
extensive consultation with a range of relevant parties, including trade 
representatives and the local community. The wishes of applicants have 
been balanced with the public interest in promoting the licensing objectives. 
All limitations and restrictions on licences are considered necessary to 
promote the licensing objectives. Whilst the circumstances of an individual 
application may justify a departure from some of the policy statements, 
general adherence to the provisions of the policy will ensure consistency in 
decision making. This provides certainty for applicants and promotes public 
confidence in the licensing regime and the quality and safety of licensed 
premises. 

4.3 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
4.3.1 General Policy 

The Licensing Authority’s starting point is to seek a reduction in crime and 
disorder throughout the District, consistent with its statutory duty under 
section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

Licences may be granted if applicants can demonstrate that a positive 
reduction in crime and disorder will result, or that it will not increase, as a 
result of the application being granted. 

4.3.2 In the event of relevant representations being made, the Authority will 
generally not grant a licence where it is likely that the premises will be used 
for unlawful purposes or where it is considered that the use of the premises is 
likely to cause an increase in crime and disorder in the area. Where 
necessary, applicants are expected to consider the impact of their proposals 
on crime and disorder both within and in the vicinity of the premises and to 
propose practical steps in their operating schedule to prevent crime and 
disorder. Such steps could include: 

 use of CCTV inside and outside the premises 
 use of metal detection or other search equipment or procedures 

Page  21



 

14 

 crime and disorder risk assessment in relation to the proposed activities 
 measures to prevent the use or supply of illegal drugs 
 ensuring that all staff are appropriately trained 
 determine the safe occupancy capacity for the premises by carrying out 

a fire safety risk assessment 
 employment of sufficient security staff controlling admission and 

patrolling the interior and exterior of the premises (such staff will be 
required to be licensed by the Security Industry Authority). The 
Authority recognises that there is a greater need for security staff in 
some premises than in others. For example there will be a greater need 
for security staff in a town centre nightclub than in a village pub. 

 participation in Pubwatch , Best Bar None or other relevant schemes 
 agreed protocols with police and other organisations and a commitment 

to co-operate and provide such evidence as the Police require 
 ensuring that measures are in place to disperse customers over an 

extended period and ensure customers leave the venue in an orderly 
fashion and without bottles or glasses 

4.3.3 In the event of Police representations, the Authority will not normally specify 
a person as a designated premises supervisor where that is likely to 
undermine the prevention of crime and disorder by reason of that person’s 
known past conduct. A person is likely to be considered unsuitable if he has 
previous unspent convictions for a relevant offence, notwithstanding that he 
has been granted a personal licence. 

4.3.4 Community Safety Partnership 

Where appropriate, applicants will be expected to have regard to the 
information published by the Carlisle and EdenNorth Cumbria Community 
Safety Partnership and consider the impact of their proposals on the issues 
identified as being of particular concern in the area for example: 

 violent crime 
 fear of crime 
 road safety 
 anti-social behaviour 
Applicants will be expected to propose steps to reduce the risks of such 
crimes increasing as a result of the licensable activities proposed. 

Reason 

The prevention of crime and disorder is one of the licensing objectives, which 
the Authority is under a duty to promote. The Authority recognises that some 
licensed premises can attract or encourage criminal behaviour, especially 
disorder problems where customers have consumed alcohol. 

4.3.5 Drugs 

Policy 

The Authority will expect licensees of venues likely to be affected by drugs to 
take all reasonable steps to prevent the entry of drugs into licensed 

Page  22



 

15 

premises, to take appropriate steps to prevent drugs changing hands within 
the premises and to take practical measures to prevent problems arising as a 
result of drug misuse. This must include the provision of free water (in 
accordance with legislation) and a disposal policy for drugs, needles and the 
development of a drugs policy. 

In particular the Authority will expect licensees and other staff in such venues 
to be familiar with the contents of the book “Safer Nightlife” issued by the 
London Drugs Policy Forum and endorsed by the Home Office and will 
expect licensees to follow the guidance it contains in relation to the operation 
of their premises. 

In appropriate cases the Authority will consider imposing these 
recommendations by way of licence conditions. 

Reason 

Evidence indicates that more people are taking illegal drugs and are using a 
wider range than ever before. This is particularly true of what are often 
referred to as ‘recreational drugs’. Their misuse can hold grave dangers and 
has even led to fatalities. 

Other factors coupled with the taking of the drugs may have contributed to 
these deaths, such as lack of drinking water, excessive drinking of water, an 
overly hot environment with inadequate ventilation, or a lack of adequate 
information about drugs. 

Drugs alter the way people behave, so law controls their distribution and 
possession. Controlled drugs are usually manufactured and supplied illegally, 
which attracts criminal involvement in their distribution. Drugs manufactured 
illegally often vary in quality and strength. This puts people taking such drugs 
in danger. 

The Authority recognises that drug use by young people in a club 
environment is not something that is relevant to all licensed premises. 
However, many entertainment venues such as nightclubs and dance venues 
can be popular both with drug misusers and suppliers. It also recognises the 
difficulties for those running such premises in preventing the use and supply 
of drugs in their premises. However, it believes that steps can be taken to 
increase the safety of drug users on premises. 

The purpose of this policy is to further the crime prevention objective and to 
ensure public safety by preventing a tragic loss of life caused by overheating 
and other factors brought about by and associated with drug abuse. 

4.4 Public Safety 
Policy 

4.4.1 The Authority may inspect any premises in respect of which an application 
has been made. Officers will determine on the basis of risk which premises 
require an inspection and will inform the applicants and arrange an 
appointment as soon as practicable. 

Page  23



 

16 

4.4.2 Where an inspection is to be carried out, the Authority’s licensing officers will 
aim to reduce inconvenience, confusion and inconsistency by co-ordinating 
inspections and visits along with representatives of the relevant Responsible 
Authorities. 

4.4.3 A premises licence will not normally be granted unless the premises meet the 
statutory and any reasonable additional requirements of the Responsible 
Authorities. 

4.4.4 It is acknowledged that the Act covers a wide range of types of premises 
including cinemas, concert halls, theatres, pubs, night clubs, private 
members’ clubs, shops, restaurants and takeaways. Each type of premises 
has different risks associated with it. It is essential that applicants assess all 
of the risks presented by their premises and proposes practical steps to 
ensure the safety of staff and customers. 

4.4.5 The Authority considers it best practice for all applicants to assess the risks 
in relation to the following issues. 

4.4.6 Electrical safety - Any assessment should be carried out in the context of the 
proposed licensable activities and to meet the appropriate British Standards. 
Other relevant conditions may be imposed requiring such standards to be 
maintained throughout the period of the licence. 

4.4.7 Fire Safety - The fire risk assessment completed in relation to the use of the 
premises should assist applicants in satisfying the Fire and Rescue Authority 
that the Public Safety objective will be met. Each premises will be audited by 
the local fire protection team as dictated by that team’s own risk based audit 
programme. 

4.4.8 Sanitation - Provision should be made for adequate sanitary facilities to be 
provided in accordance with the appropriate guidance and capacity of the 
premises. 

4.4.9 Seating - Where customer seating is provided, it should be demonstrably 
safe in consideration of the intended activities and, again, should meet British 
Standards. 

4.4.10 Occupancy Limits - The Authority will not generally impose conditions as to 
occupancy levels where these are adequately addressed by other controls 
but may do so in any other case where relevant representations are made. 
Capacities should be addressed in the fire risk assessment. 

4.4.11 Maintenance - in event of representations beings made, the Authority will 
normally impose conditions to secure the provision and adequate 
maintenance of premises and equipment and the compliance with any 
procedural requirements of any relevant organisation (where such conditions 
will not duplicate requirements under existing legislation), for example, 
electrical safety, fire alarm, emergency lighting, ceiling certificate, structural 
survey. It will also expect that adequate records will be kept to demonstrate 
compliance with the above requirements.

Page  24



 

17 

 

4.4.12 Prevention of injury - where: 

 there is evidence of a current or past problem in relation to particular 
premises or a particular locality, or 

 in all the circumstances it is considered likely that such a problem might 
occur, and/or 

 premises are to be used primarily for the sale/supply and consumption 
of alcohol (particularly if those premises have little seating for patrons 
relative to their size/capacity), 

applicants should give consideration to a policy as to the use of plastic, 
polycarbonate or toughened glass, and a policy not to pass glass bottles over 
the bar, either throughout the period of operation or at certain times or on 
certain occasions, and should include such policies in their operating 
schedule. If relevant representations are made and the Authority considers it 
to be necessary, it may impose conditions to secure this. 

The Government believes that a risk-based, rather than blanket, approach to 
requiring licensed premises to use safer alternatives is the best way to tackle 
the problem of glass related injuries. 

Reason 

The Authority expects premises that are open to customers to meet the 
highest standards of the relevant organisations in order to best secure the 
safety of staff and customers. This is also one of the licensing objectives. The 
Authority believes that customers should feel confident that when they enter 
premises they will be safe. 

4.5 Prevention of Public Nuisance 
4.5.1 General Policy on Licensing Hours 

4.5.2 The Authority recognises that fixed and artificially early closing times can 
lead to peaks of disorder and disturbance on the streets when large numbers 
of people leave licensed premises at the same time. Longer licensing hours, 
particularly relating to the sale of alcohol, may therefore be a factor in 
reducing disorder at late night food outlets, taxi ranks and other sources of 
transport in areas where there have already been incidents of disorder and 
disturbance. 

4.5.3 The Authority will not seek to introduce any form of ‘zoning’ in relation to 
licensing hours. Zoning is defined as the setting of fixed trading hours within 
a designated area. All residents living in the vicinity of licensed premises 
have equal rights to make representations concerning applications for and 
reviews of premises licences, including hours of trading, and to have those 
representations given equal weight regardless of where they live. 

4.5.4 Shops, stores and supermarkets will generally be permitted to sell alcohol for 
consumption off the premises during the normal hours they intend to open for 
shopping purposes. However, in the case of individual shops that are known 

Page  25



 

18 

to be a focus of disorder and disturbance then, subject to representations 
from the police, a limitation on licensing hours may be appropriate. 

4.5.5 In general, the Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the 
individual merits of each application. However, when issuing a licence, 
stricter conditions are likely to be imposed with regard to noise control in the 
case of premises that are situated in predominantly residential areas and 
other noise sensitive locations. 

Reason 

Experience in other areas shows that zoning can lead to additional problems 
including the movement of people in search of premises opening later and 
can put greater pressure on town centres than is necessary. 

4.5.6 Policy - Location of Premises 

4.5.7 The Authority will assess the potential impact of the premises against the 
characteristics of the area in which they are situated. For example, in the 
event of representation being made there would be close scrutiny of 
applications for a closing time of later than 11pm in respect of premises 
situated in quiet residential areas with low background noise. Greater 
flexibility on closing times would be considered where for example, applicants 
could demonstrate that: 

 there is a high level of accessibility to public transport services 

 there is an appropriate amount of car parking, readily accessible to the 
premises, and in places where vehicular movement will not cause 
demonstrable adverse impact to local residents 

 the operating schedule indicates that the applicant is taking appropriate 
steps to comply with the licensing objective of preventing public 
nuisance 

 the licensable activities would not be likely to cause adverse impact 
especially on local residents, or that, if there is a potential to cause 
adverse impact, appropriate measures are to be put in place to prevent 
or minimise that impact 

Reason 

This part of the policy dealing with opening hours is based on a broad 
distinction between the approach to be taken in certain predominantly 
commercial areas like parts of the town centres and the rest of the District. 

Any activity involving public entertainment or eating or drinking on the 
premises has the potential to impact adversely on the surrounding area due 
to noise, smells, or congestion on the footway. Public nuisance may also be 
caused by customers being noisy when leaving, leaving litter or taking up 
on-street car parking space needed by residents. The impact of noise 
generated by these activities, especially customers departing either on foot or 
in cars, is particularly intrusive at night when ambient noise levels are much 
lower. 

Page  26



 

19 

Parts of the District are sensitive to the impact of licensable activities 
because they are either residential in character or close to residential areas. 
Many shopping areas are abutted by residential areas, including housing 
above commercial premises. The impact of traffic and parking related to 
licensed premises can be considerable. Even where a majority of customers 
arrive on foot or by public transport, the additional parking demand may be 
significant, especially where there are already a number of licensed 
premises. The impact may be felt by local residents in preventing them from 
parking close to their homes and by increasing the danger from traffic in 
residential streets. 

However, some commercial areas in the District, such as parts of town 
centres, may be more suitable locations for licensed activities, especially for 
those, which have late opening hours or attract significant numbers of 
people. In town centres, more customers are likely to travel by public 
transport and the activities may help bring vitality to the area after normal 
shopping hours. The ambient noise levels are also likely to be higher in the 
evening particularly when compared with predominantly residential areas so 
that additional noise may be less objectionable. 

An entertainment use attracting large numbers of people should be very 
close to bus routes or taxi ranks, for instance. For the same reasons, the 
level of public transport accessibility will be an important factor in considering 
any exception to the normal closing times in any location. 

4.5.8 Noise 

4.5.9 Policy 

4.5.10 In the event of representations being made, the Authority will not normally 
grant a premises licence in terms, which are, in its opinion, likely to result in 
increased noise disturbance to people living or working in the vicinity. 

4.5.11 In particular, the Authority will give careful consideration to an application for 
a licence for premises situated in an area where there are residences in the 
vicinity which would be adversely affected, such that the proposed hours of 
operation would be likely to result in unreasonable noise disturbance 
between the hours of 11pm and 7am. 

4.5.12 The Authority expects the applicant to assess the likely sources of noise 
disturbance that could arise due to the proposed use, consider the existing 
noise context of the area and propose practical steps to prevent noise 
disturbance or minimise its effects. 

4.5.13 Potential sources of noise include: 

 sound leakage from the licensed premises (from entertainment 
provided, customers on the premises, mechanical equipment etc) 

 customers and staff arriving and leaving the premises (including car 
doors slamming) 

 excessive noise from outside entertainment 
 customers occupying outside areas for the purpose of smoking and/or 

the consumption of alcohol 

Page  27



 

20 

4.5.14 Practical steps could include: 

 keeping doors and windows closed whilst entertainment is provided 
 installing soundproofing measures to the premises (specialist double 

glazing, acoustic hoods over extractor fan outlets etc) 
 reducing sound levels inside the premises (inclusion of a sound 

limitation device in the sound system) 
 ensuring that queues are directed to form leading away from residential 

premises 
 ensuring that sufficient door security staff manage queuing and leaving 

customers to minimise noise 
 erecting prominent notices at exits requesting customers to leave 

quietly 
 reducing the volume of music entertainment towards the end of the 

evening 
 giving free lollipops to customers leaving the premises 
 ensuring that sufficient transport is nearby to enable customers leaving 

the premises to disperse quickly 
 banning from the premises customers known to cause noise 

disturbance regularly on leaving the premises 
 ensuring that customers are encouraged to leave the premises 

(including any car park or forecourt) swiftly 
 ensuring the volume of outdoor entertainment does not cause noise 

disturbance 
 terminating the provision of entertainment at a reasonable time 
 the prospect of providing police supervision at closing times 

4.5.15 The Authority may impose conditions to ensure that appropriate steps are 
taken to minimise noise disturbance. 

4.5.16 Live Music, Dancing and Theatre 

4.5.17 The Authority recognises the need to encourage and promote live music, 
dance and theatre for the wider cultural benefit of the community, particularly 
for children. 

4.5.18 When considering applications for such events and the imposition of 
conditions on licences or certificates, the Authority will carefully balance the 
cultural needs with the necessity of promoting the licensing objectives. 

4.5.19 Consideration will be given to the particular characteristics of any event, 
including the type, scale and duration of the proposed entertainment, 
especially where limited disturbance only may be caused. 

Reason 

The prevention of public nuisance is a licensing objective. Noise disturbance 
can be a public nuisance. The Authority is required to promote the licensing 
objectives. Granting a licence in circumstances where nuisance is likely to be 
caused will undermine that objective. The Council recognises that noise from 
licensed premises can cause great disturbance to people living and working 
near those premises. The Authority recognises that noise can be a nuisance 

Page  28



 

21 

during the day and at night in both residential and commercial areas and 
other noise sensitive locations if not properly managed or controlled. 

4.5.20 Tables and Chairs Outside Premises including Garden Areas 

Policy 

4.5.21 The Authority recognises that provision of tables and chairs outside premises 
either on the highway or on private land may enhance those premises. It can 
have the benefit of encouraging a continental style café culture. However, 
late at night these same tables and chairs can contribute to noise and 
disorder problems. This is because they can encourage patrons and passers 
by to loiter rather than disperse. Licensees should note that, in certain areas, 
byelaws prohibit the consumption of alcohol in public. Before planning to use 
tables and chairs outside premises (particularly where it is intended that 
alcohol will be sold), applicants should ensure that they will not contravene 
any byelaws or orders. Applicants should also ensure that other legislation, 
for example in relation to highways, planning and smoking will not be 
contravened. 

4.5.22 In the event of representations being made, the Authority will carefully 
consider any application where outdoor tables and chairs are proposed to be 
provided. In particular the Authority will assess the premises in the context of 
their location, the hours during which the premises are to be open, the 
proposed licensable activities and proposals for control of the tables and 
chairs outside the hours of operation. 

Reason 

This policy is designed to strike a fair balance between the needs of those 
wishing to enjoy refreshment in the open air and the need to prevent safety 
and nuisance problems. 

4.5.23 Littering 

Licences for premises, in particular for the provision of late night refreshment 
for consumption off the premises, will not normally be granted where 
nuisance is likely to be caused by way of litter/food refuse being deposited on 
streets surrounding the premises and such nuisance is expected, due to the 
nature of the premises and likely customers, to exceed the level of nuisance 
caused by similar premises open during the day (for which no licence is 
required). In their operating schedule, applicants are expected to propose 
practical steps to reduce the likelihood of such problems arising, which could 
include: 

 provision of litter bins and smoking bins on/in vicinity of premises 
 litter patrols in the area after premises close (these could be organised 

in partnership with other premises or the local authority for example) 
4.5.24 Conditions may be imposed seeking to limit the nuisance caused by litter.

Page  29



 

22 

 

Reason 

Litter and food waste can be detrimental to the amenity of an area and can 
also represent a public health risk and encourage vermin. This policy seeks 
to prevent such nuisance occurring in promotion of the relevant licensing 
objective. 

4.6 Protection of Children from Harm 
General Policy 

4.6.1 The Authority will not normally impose conditions prohibiting the admission of 
children to any premises, unless relevant representations have been made, 
believing this should remain a matter of discretion for the licence holder. 
Licence holders should be aware that there may be restrictions imposed by 
legislation. In some cases, however, it may be necessary to impose 
conditions designed to protect children. 

4.6.2 The Authority will take strong measures to protect children from harm where 
it believes from the nature of the premises or proposed activities that harm 
would be likely. Examples of premises where the introduction of additional 
controls may be necessary are: 

 where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is intended to be 
provided 

 where those running or working at licensed premises have been 
convicted of offences of serving alcohol to minors or where there is 
evidence to suggest that such activities have regularly taken place in 
the premises 

 where the premises are known to be associated with people taking 
drugs or dealing in drugs 

 where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises 
 where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the 

exclusive or primary purpose of the services provided at the premises 
 where the nature of the proposed licensable activity is likely to be more 

harmful to children than to adults (for example if the likely level of noise 
from regulated entertainment is likely to be high) 

 in any other case where there is a presumption that children under 18 
should not be admitted to the type of premises concerned 

 where premises are located near to schools, youth clubs or other 
premises commonly used by children 

 where there is any contravention of child employment legislation as 
enforced by Cumbria County Council Children’s Services 

4.6.3 In such circumstances, while it may sometimes be necessary to impose a 
complete prohibition on the entry of children to the premises whilst licensable 
activities are being provided, this would be only rarely imposed. The Authority 
would normally be more likely to impose requirements such as:

Page  30



 

23 

 

 limitations on the hours when children may be present 
 limitations on the age at which children are to be permitted to enter the 

premises 
 limitations or exclusions of children when certain activities are taking 

place 
 requirements for accompanying adults 
 how the age of potential customers is to be verified both in terms of 

entry (where there are age restrictions) and in relation to the service of 
alcohol 

4.6.4 Applicants should address the action they intend to take to protect children 
from harm in their operating schedules. 

4.6.5 Where there is provision of entertainment specifically for children (for 
example, a children’s disco) the Authority will require the presence of 
sufficient adults to control the access and egress of the children and assure 
their safety. 

4.6.6 Where children are working in licensed premises or are taking part in any 
regulated entertainment the Authority will expect the responsible adult to 
obtain guidance from Cumbria County Council Children’s Services. 

4.6.7 The Authority recognises Cumbria County Council Children Services as the 
“Responsible Authority” under the Act, who will act on behalf of both 
themselves and the Cumbria Local Safeguarding BoardCumbria 
Safeguarding Children Partnership in respect of the protection of children 
from harm. 

4.6.8 Proof of Age 

4.6.9 The Authority expects personal licence holders to ensure that alcohol is not 
supplied to persons under 18 years, except in circumstances allowed by law. 
The Authority would encourage premises licence holders to have written 
procedures for the prevention of under age sales. 

4.6.10 The Authority recommends that the only way to verify a person’s age is by 
reference to the following: 

 passport 
 photo card driving licence issued by an EU country 
 an accredited proof of age scheme identity card 
 an official ID card issued by HM Forces or by EU country bearing the 

photograph and birth date of the bearer 
 any other nationally recognised scheme as may from time to time be 

agreed 
The Authority recommends that any systems should be accredited and 
approved by the British retail consortiums Proof of Age Standards Scheme 
(PASS).

Page  31



 

24 

 

Reason 

Children are vulnerable and can easily become the victims of crime or get 
drawn into crime. If they were allowed unrestricted access to all licensed 
premises, they could witness or become involved in activities inappropriate 
for their age. These policies are designed to allow flexibility for the licensee, 
to ensure that where appropriate licensed premises are “user friendly” for 
children but to ensure they are adequately protected. The policy seeks to 
ensure that children are adequately protected whilst still able to enjoy 
licensed premises. 

4.6.11 Adult Entertainment 

4.6.12 Policy 

4.6.13 No-one under the age of 18 should be permitted to enter premises whilst 
entertainment of an adult nature is being provided. 

4.6.14 Adult entertainment should not take place in such a location as could be 
viewed from the outside of the premises. Advertising of adult entertainment 
should not include any photographs of the entertainment. 

4.6.15 In the event of representations being made, applications that include 
provision for adult entertainment to be provided will not normally be granted 
unless the applicant can demonstrate that performers will be safe and that 
unlawful activities will not take place. 

4.6.16 In considering the grant of applications involving striptease, nudity (partial or 
otherwise) and other forms of adult entertainment the Authority will also have 
regard to the increased risk of nuisance to nearby residents and will consider 
rejecting the application or attaching appropriate conditions. 

4.6.17 The Authority has adopted Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by section 27 of the 
Policing and Crime Act 2009 in relation to the licensing of sex 
establishments. This will be the subject of a separate policy at a later date. 

Reason 

These policies are designed to further the licensing objective of protecting 
children by preventing them being exposed to unsuitable material or acts. 
They are also designed to further the crime prevention and prevention of 
nuisance objectives by recognising the increased risk of nuisance or illegal 
activities such as performers offering “extras” to customers or the plying for 
trade by prostitutes. 

4.6.18 Exhibition of Films 

4.6.19 Policy 

4.6.20 Where the exhibition of films is permitted, the Authority will expect the age 
restrictions of the British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) in respect of the 
films to be exhibited to be complied with and will normally impose conditions 

Page  32



 

25 

to that effect. Only in exceptional cases will variations to this general rule be 
granted by the Authority and then only with appropriate safeguards. 

4.6.21 Applicants will be expected to include in the operating schedule 
arrangements for restricting children from viewing age related films classified 
according to the recommendations of the BBFC. 

4.6.22 Licensees will not generally be permitted to exhibit any films that are not 
classified by BBFC without the prior written consent of the Authority. 

4.6.23 To achieve consistency and the protection of children the Authority will use 
the guidelines published by the BBFC. Where it is desired to show films not 
classified by the BBFC the Authority will, provided at least 4 weeks’ notice 
has been given, classify the films concerned. Where licensees wish the 
Authority to reconsider the BBFC classification of a film, a similar procedure 
will be followed. 

Reason 

To protect children from exposure to films containing adult themes including 
scenes of violence or of a sexual nature inappropriate to their age. 

4.6.24 Staging of Plays 

4.6.25 Policy 

4.6.26 The Authority would not wish to impose any restriction as to the plays which 
may be performed on premises licensed for that purpose. The law does not 
allow any conditions to be imposed regarding the nature of plays which may 
be performed or the manner in which they may be performed. However, 
where a play involves: 

 the use of bad language 
 nudity or the portrayal of sexual activity 
 violence 
 drug use, or 
 other ‘adult’ themes or content 

4.6.27  tThe Authority may impose a condition in relation to the age of children 
who shall be permitted to watch the play. In this regard, the Authority will be 
guided by the BBFC guidelines relating to films and would encourage 
theatres and other venues which intend to stage plays to consider each play 
they intend to stage in the light of those guidelines and impose an age 
restriction where appropriate and/or ensure that sufficient information is given 
to parents in the promotional material for plays to allow them to make an 
informed choice as to whether to allow their child to attend. 

Reason 

To protect children from exposure to adult themes or content which is not 
appropriate to their age.

Page  33



 

26 

 

4.7 Cumulative Effect 
Policy 

4.7.1 Where the Authority receives representations from a responsible authority or 
any other person that the cumulative effect of licensed premises is leading to 
an area becoming saturated with premises the Authority will consider 
whether or not the granting of additional licences might lead to one or more 
of the Licensing Objectives being undermined. 

4.7.2 The Authority recognises that the cumulative impact of a number, type and 
density of licensed premises in a given area may lead to serious problems of 
public nuisance and crime and disorder outside and some distance from the 
premises. 

4.7.3 Where representations are received from a responsible authority/any other 
person that an area has become saturated with premises creating problems 
of disorder and nuisance over and above the impact from the individual 
premises, the Authority will first consider whether the imposition of conditions 
is likely to address these problems and, if not, may consider the adoption of a 
special policy of refusing new premises licences or club premises certificates 
because the area is saturated with licensed premises and the granting of any 
more would undermine one of the licensing objectives. 

4.7.4 The Authority will take the following steps when considering whether to adopt 
a special saturation policy: 

 identify serious and chronic concerns from a responsible authority or 
representatives of residents about nuisance and disorder 

 where it can be demonstrated that disorder and nuisance is arising as a 
result of customers from licensed premises, identify the area from which 
problems are arising and the boundaries of that area 

 assess the causes 

 adopt a policy about future licence applications from that area 
4.7.5 A saturation policy will only be adopted where there is clear evidence to 

support any assertion that the addition of the premises in question would 
produce the cumulative impact claimed, taking into account that the impact 
will be different for premises with different styles and characteristics. 

4.7.6 The Authority recognises the diversity of licensed premises and will have full 
regard to those differences and the differing impact each has on the local 
community. 

4.7.7 It therefore also recognises that, within this policy, it may be able to approve 
licences that are unlikely to add significantly to the saturation and will 
consider the circumstances of each individual application. 

4.7.8 Evidence of demand or need (or lack of the same) will not be considered.

Page  34



 

27 

 

4.7.9 Other mechanisms for controlling cumulative impact include: 

 planning controls; 
 positive measures to create a safe and clean town centre environment 

in partnership with local businesses, transport operators and other 
departments of the local authority; 

 the provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, ample taxi ranks, 
provision of public conveniences open late at night, street cleaning and 
litter patrols; 

 powers of local authorities to designate parts of the local authority area 
as places where alcohol may not be consumed publicly; 

 police enforcement of the general law concerning disorder and anti-
social behaviour, including the issuing of fixed penalty notices; 

 the prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at 
such premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk; 

 the confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in designated areas; 
 police powers to close down instantly any licensed premises or 

temporary event on grounds of disorder, the likelihood of disorder or 
noise emanating from the premises causing a nuisance; 

 the power of the police, other responsible authorities or any other 
person to seek a review of the licence or certificate in question; 

 considering raising a contribution to policing the late night economy 
through the introduction of a Late Night Levy; 

 considering the introduction of Early Morning Alcohol Restriction Orders 
(EMROs) to address recurring problems such as high levels of alcohol-
related crime and disorder if the Authority is satisfied that it has 
sufficient evidence to demonstrate that making an EMRO would be 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

These may be supplemented by other local initiatives that similarly address 
these problems. 

Reason 

It is not the policy of the Authority to seek to limit the number of licensed 
premises which will be permitted because there are already enough licensed 
premises to satisfy the demand. That is not a matter for the Authority. 

The ‘cumulative impact’ of the granting of an additional licence on the 
promotion of the Licensing Objectives is, however, a proper matter for the 
Authority to consider under this policy and the Authority may adopt a Special 
Saturation Policy. 

The impact from licensed premises increases considerably in areas where 
there are concentrations of such premises. The adverse effects from licensed 
uses are particularly acute in some areas of the District both in and around 
town centres and elsewhere.

Page  35



 

28 

 

4.8. Consideration of Applications and the Imposition of Conditions 
Policy 

4.8.1 On granting a licence, the Authority may only impose conditions that are: 

 required by law, and/or 
 necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives, and 
 and proportionate 

4.8.2 If no relevant representations are received, a licence will be granted on the 
terms sought subject only to such conditions as are consistent with the 
operating schedule and which comply with the above paragraph and any 
relevant statutory conditions. 

4.8.3 In deciding what conditions to impose, the Authority shall have regard to the 
operating schedule together with the provisions of this policy statement, the 
law and government guidance and the representations made. Where there is 
any ambiguity or uncertainty in the meaning of any part of the application, the 
application shall be interpreted in such a way as shall best promote the 
licensing objectives. 

4.8.4 Where relevant representations are received, the Authority will consider 
those representations together with any representations of the applicant, 
having regard to the provisions of this policy, the law and government 
guidance. Where relevant representations have been made, the Authority will 
not normally grant a licence in terms which conflict with this policy statement. 
In particular it may: 

 reject the application - if to do so is necessary to promote the licensing 
objectives and none of the following actions is reasonably practicable 

 grant the licence but exclude from its scope one or more of the 
licensable activities applied for in order to ensure that the licence 
complies with this policy and promotes the licensing objectives 

 grant the licence but modify such of the conditions imposed as is 
necessary to ensure compliance with this policy and to promote the 
licensing objectives 

 grant the licence but refuse to specify a particular person in the licence 
as the designated premises supervisor if to name that person would 
undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives 

 approve different parts of the premises for different activities 
4.8.5 The Authority will not impose conditions that duplicate other areas of 

regulation. For example, conditions will not be imposed which simply 
duplicate planning conditions. 

4.8.6 However, there may be occasions when conditions will be imposed which the 
Authority considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives 
and which overlap with other areas of regulation where, for example, it is 

Page  36



 

29 

considered that planning restrictions do not adequately deal with those 
matters. 

4.8.7 In general any conditions imposed will be drawn from a pool of sample 
conditions. 

4.8.8 Provided the licensing objectives are not undermined and the proposal does 
not conflict with the other statements in this policy, licences will be granted so 
that premises will be able to open to provide licensable activities between 
such times as the applicant sets out in his application. 

4.8.9 When deciding what conditions to impose, the Authority will have regard to 
the particular requirements of people with disabilities, and will, so far as 
possible, seek to ensure that none of the conditions imposed on licences will 
have the effect of excluding such persons access to licensed premises. 

Reason 

The power to impose conditions is limited by the provisions of the Act. The 
Authority is under a duty to exercise its licensing functions with a view to 
promoting the licensing objectives. 

4.9 Transfer of Licences 

4.9.1 When considering an application for the transfer of a premises licence, the 
Authority will only have regard to the exceptional circumstances of the case 
as set out in any objection raised by the police or Home Office (Immigration 
Enforcement) on the grounds that the transfer will undermine the crime 
prevention objective. The effect on the crime prevention objective will be 
considered against the background of the policies contained in this 
document. 

4.10 Variation of Licences 
4.10.1 When considering an application for the variation of a licence, the Authority 

will consider the impact of the variation in terms of the policies in this 
document and the licensing objectives. It will not use such an application as a 
means to review the licence terms and conditions already granted. 

4.10.2 Minor Variations - A premises licence/club premises certificate holder may 
apply under the ‘minor variation’ procedure for small variations that will not 
impact adversely on the licensing objectives. There is no right to a hearing, 
however, if the application is rejected, a full variation application may be 
made. 

4.10.3 Disapplication of designated premises supervisor - Where community 
premises hold a premises licence allowing the sale/supply of alcohol, the 
licence holder can apply to have remove the mandatory condition requiring a 
designated premises supervisor to be appointed, be removed. This passes 
the responsibility for the sale/supply of alcohol to the premises Management 
Committee.

Page  37



 

30 

 

4.11 Provisional Statements 
4.11.1 An application for a provisional statement will be considered in the same way 

as would an application for a premises licence on the assumption that the 
works are completed as per the schedule of works submitted by the 
applicant. 

4.12 Sexual Entertainment Venue 
4.12.1 Where premises are to be used on 12 or more occasions within a 12 month 

period for relevant sexual entertainment, the premises must also be licensed 
as a Sexual Entertainment Venue. Relevant sexual entertainment includes: 
lap dancing, pole dancing, table dancing, strip shows, peep shows, live sex 
shows. This activity will be the subject of a separate policy. 

4.12.2 This licence only applies in areas where Schedule 3 of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by the Policing and Crime 
Act 2009 has been adopted. This was adopted by this Authority on 
24 February 2011 with effect from 1 April 2011. 

5 Complaints/Review of Licences 
5.1 Complaints 
5.1.2 The Authority will investigate complaints relevant to the licensing objectives 

in relation to licensed premises of any description. In the first instance, 
complainants will be encouraged to raise the complaint directly with the 
licensee or business concerned. Where a Responsible Authority or any other 
person (such as a local resident, residents’ association or Licensing Authority 
council member) has made 

(a) valid representations about licensed premises or 

(b) a valid application for a licence to be reviewed 

then the Authority may initially arrange a mediation meeting to address, 
clarify and try to resolve the issues of concern. 

5.1.3 This process will not override the right of any Responsible Authority or any 
other person to ask that the Licensing Committee consider their request for a 
review of the licence or for any licence holder to decline to participate in a 
mediation meeting. 

5.2 Licence Reviews 
5.2.1 The Authority will view seriously applications for the review of any premises 

licence where it involves: 

 persistent failure to comply with licence conditions 

 actions or omissions by the licensee (or his staff) which undermine the 
licensing objectives, particularly where they endanger public safety, 
expose children to actual or potential harm or cause public nuisance

Page  38



 

31 

 
5.2.2 They will also view particularly seriously applications for review where: 

 licensed premises have been used for the sale and distribution of illegal 
drugs and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crimes 

 licensed premises have been used for the sale and distribution of illegal 
firearms 

 there has been repeated breach of copyright in respect of films, music 
etc 

 there have been proven sales of alcohol to and consumption of alcohol 
by children for consumption on or off licensed premises 

 licensed premises have been used for prostitution or the sale of 
unlawful pornography 

 licensed premises have been used for unlawful gaming 
 licensed premises have been used as a base for organised criminal 

activity 
 licensed premises have been used for the organisation of racist, 

homophobic or sexual abuse or attacks 
 licensed premises have been used for the sale of illicit tobacco or goods 
 licensed premises have been used for the sale of stolen goods 
 licensed premises have been used for employing a person who is 

disqualified from that work by reason of their immigration status in the 
UK 

 the police have frequently been called to attend to incidents of disorder 
at the premises 

6 Enforcement 
6.1 Where necessary, enforcement action will be taken by the Authority in 

accordance with the Government’s better regulation agenda, the principles of 
the Statutory Code of Practice for Regulators and the Authority’s Licensing 
Enforcement Policy. 

6.2 Applicants should be aware that other agencies may take appropriate action 
under their own policies or legislation, for example, Cumbria Constabulary, 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service, and Trading Standards etc. The Police 
Authority have powers under the Act to close premises in certain 
circumstances. 

6.3 In particular, regard will be had to the fundamental principles recommended 
by the Better Regulation Task Force for good enforcement: 

 Targeting - focusing on activities that give rise to the most serious risks 
or where hazards are least well controlled. 

 Consistency - similar approaches in similar circumstances to achieve 
similar ends. 

 Transparency - helping duty holders to understand what is expected 
and distinguishing between statutory requirements and guidance. 

 Proportionality - action taken should be proportional to the risk 
presented. 

Page  39



 

32 

6.4 The Authority has established protocols with the Responsible Authorities on 
enforcement issues to avoid duplication and to provide for the most efficient 
deployment of their officers in respect of inspection of licensed premises and 
the enforcement of licensing law. These protocols are periodically reviewed 
by the Licensing Authority. 

6.5 Furthermore the policy of the Authority will always be a light touch inspection 
regime for well managed and maintained premises with a targeted and 
graduated inspection and enforcement regime for problem and high-risk 
premises. 

6.6 The Authority will for its own purposes in undertaking its licensing functions 
under the Act assess the risks posed by licensed premises to the promotion 
of the licensing objectives. Generally the broad categories of risks are as 
follows: 

 High risk: nightclubs, pubs, events over 500 persons 
 Medium risk: clubs, off-licences (where not part of a larger store), 

other late night refreshment premises, theatres, 
cinemas 

 Low risk: off licences that are part of a larger store, restaurants 
6.7 However, the Authority recognises that not all premises in a particular 

category represent the same level of risk to the public. These categories are 
for guidance only. The circumstances of particular premises may place them 
in a higher or lower category of risk. Applicants should be aware that officers 
of the Authority and other agencies may attend the premises unannounced at 
any time. When inspecting premises, officers will be seeking to ensure that 
the premises have not been altered or deteriorated since the licence was 
granted and that all of the licence terms and conditions are being complied 
with. 

6.8 The Authority recognises the Hampton principles of inspection and 
enforcement, which includes: 

 Generally, inspections should not take place without a reason. 

 Regulators should recognise that a key element of their activity will be 
to allow or even encourage economic progress and only to intervene 
when there is a clear case for protection. 

7 Permitted Temporary Activities 
The law (Part 5 of the Act) 

7.1 Where a person wishes to use premises for one or more of the licensable 
activities for a period not exceeding 168 hours where the maximum number 
of persons allowed on the premises at the same time will not exceed 499, a 
premises licence is not required. The person can simply serve a temporary 
event notice (TEN) on the Authority notifying them of the event. The notice 
must be served on the Authority and a copy served on the police and 
responsible authority for environmental health functions. 

Page  40



 

33 

7.2 There are two types of TEN; a standard TEN and a late TEN. A standard 
TEN should be given no later than 10 working days before the day on which 
the event is to start; a late TEN should be given not before nine and not later 
than five working days before the day on which the event is to start. ‘Working 
days’ are Monday to Friday excluding Christmas Day, Good Friday and other 
Bank Holidays and exclude the day the notice is received and the first day of 
the event. 

7.3 If alcohol is to be supplied, all supplies must be carried out by or under the 
authority of the person serving the temporary event notice who need not hold 
a personal licence. 

7.4 There are limitations on the number of temporary event notices that 
individuals can give and which can be given in relation to particular premises. 

7.5 It is hoped that the organisers of such activities will voluntarily comply with 
the requirements of this policy in staging their events. When considering an 
objection notice from the police or environmental health, the Authority will 
take account of the provisions of this document so far as they relate to the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

7.6 Where the limitations on a temporary event cannot be fulfilled, for example 
due to the large numbers attending, a premises licence will be required. The 
Authority would expect early notice of such a major event to allow 
responsible authorities to discuss and agree operating schedules (See 
paragraph 4). 

8 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions 
8.1 The Authority will be involved in a wide range of licensing decisions and 

functions and has established a Licensing Committee to administer them. 

8.2 Appreciating the need to provide a speedy, efficient and cost-effective 
service to all parties involved in the licensing process, the Committee has 
delegated certain decisions and functions and has established a number of 
Sub-Committees to deal with them. 

8.3 Further, with many of the decisions and functions being purely administrative 
in nature, the grant of non-contentious applications, including for example, 
those licences and certificates where no representations have been made, 
has been delegated to Authority officers. 

8.4 The Licensing Committee will consist of 10 councillors. Licensing Sub-
Committees of three councillors are expected to consider the bulk of 
applications where a hearing is necessary. Ward councillors will not sit on a 
Sub-Committee involving an application within their ward. 

8.5 Every determination of a licensing application by the Licensing Committee or 
a Licensing Sub-Committee shall be accompanied with clear, cogent reasons 
for the decision. 

8.6 It is expected that the Authority’s licensing officers will deal with the majority 
of licence applications and will decide whether representations are irrelevant, 
frivolous or vexatious. The person making a representation, which is 

Page  41



 

34 

considered to be frivolous or vexatious, will be given written reasons for that 
decision. 

8.7 The Authority will ensure that members and officers are appropriately trained 
to carry out their duties under the Licensing Act. 

8.8 The table at Appendix 1 sets out the agreed delegation of decisions and 
functions to Licensing Committee, Sub-Committees and Officers. 

8.9 Officers, a Licensing Sub-Committee and even the full Licensing Committee 
may decline to exercise their delegated powers in any particular case. On 
such occasions, officers may refer a matter to a sub-committee, the sub-
committee to a full committee and the full committee to the full council. 

Page  42



 

35 

Appendix 1 - Table of Delegated Functions 
Matters to be Dealt With Full 

Committee 
Sub-Committee Officers 

Application for personal licence  If a police 
objectionobjection 
received 

If no objection 
made 

Application for personal licence 
with unspent convictions 

 All cases  

Application for premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application for provisional 
statement 

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application to vary premises 
licence/club premises certificate  

 If a relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application to vary designated 
premises supervisor 

 If a police 
objection 

All other cases 

Request to be removed as 
designated premises supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of 
premises licence 

 If a police 
objection received 

All other cases 

Applications for interim 
authorities 

 If a police 
objection received 

All other cases 

Application to review premises 
licence/club premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether a 
complaint is irrelevant, 
frivolous, vexatious, etc 

  All cases 

Decision to object when local 
authority is a consultee and not 
the relevant authority 
considering the application 

 All cases  

Determination of an objection to 
a temporary event notice 

 All cases  

Determination of application to 
vary premises licence at 
community premises to include 
alternative licence condition 

 If a police 
objection 

All other cases 

Decision whether to consult 
other responsible authorities on 
minor variation application 

  All cases 

Determination of minor variation 
application 

  All cases 

 
A Full Committee will consist of 10 members, with a quorum of three. 
A Sub-Committee will consist of three members. 

Page  43



 

36 

Appendix 2 - Appeals Procedure 
1. Other than in the case of personal licences, an appeal has to be made to 

North Cumbria Magistrates’ Court. In the case of personal licences, the 
appeal must be made to the magistrates’ court for the petty sessions area in 
which the Licensing Authority (or any part of it) which made the decision is 
situated. 

2. An appeal has to be commenced by the giving of a notice of appeal by the 
appellant to the justices’ chief executive for the magistrates’ court within a 
period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the appellant was notified 
by the Licensing Authority of the decision to be appealed against. 

3. The Licensing Authority will always be a respondent to the appeal, but in 
cases where a favourable decision has been made for an applicant licence 
holder, club or premises user against the representations of a responsible 
authority or any other person or the objections of the chief officer of police, 
the holder of the premises or personal licence or club premises certificate or 
the person who gave an interim authority notice or the premises user will also 
be a respondent to the appeal and the person who made the relevant 
representation or the chief officer of police will be the appellants. 

4. On determining an appeal, the court may: 

 dismiss the appeal; 
 substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which 

could have been made by the Licensing Authority; or 
 remit the case to the Licensing Authority to dispose of it in accordance 

with the direction of the court. 
5. The court may make such order as to costs as it thinks fit. 

6. The court, on hearing any appeal, may therefore review the merits of the 
decision on the facts and consider points of law or address both. 

Page  44



 

37 

Appendix 3 - Guides of Best Practice 
1. The Event Safety Guide - A guide to health, safety and welfare at music and 

similar events (HSG 195) (“The Purple Book”) ISBN 978-0-7176-2453-9 

2. Guide to Fire Precautions in existing places of entertainment and like 
premises (The Stationery Office) (“The Primrose Guide”) ISBN 
0-11-340907-9. 

3. Managing Crowds Safely in public venues ISBN 978-0-11-702074-0 

4. 5 Steps to Risk Assessment: Case Studies (HSE 2006) INDG 163(rev2) 

5. The Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds (The Stationery Office, 2008) (“The 
Green Guide”) ISBN 978-0-11-702074-0 

6. Good Practice Guide on the Control of Noise from Pubs and Clubs 2003 - 
The Institute of Acoustics www.ioa.org.uk/publications 

7. Safer Nightlife - London Drugs Policy Forum ISBN 978-1-84726-683-5 

8. Talk to Frank - The a-z of drugs www.talktofrank.com 

9. The Portman Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and 
Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks - www.portmangroup.org.uk 

10. British Board of Film - Classification Guidelines - www.bbfc.co.uk 

11. HSE Guide - The Radiation Safety of laser installation used for display 
purposes [HS(G)95] HSE Books ISBN 0-7-76-0691 

12. Alcohol Harm Reduction Strategy for England - www.cabinetoffice.gov.uk 

13. Alcohol Change - www.alcoholchange.org.uk 

14. Safety Guidance for Street Arts, Carnivals, Processions and Large-Scale 
Performance ISBN 978-0-9544892-5-0 

15. Point of Sale Promotions 
Risk Assessment to Combating Violence in Licensed Premises 
Licensed Property: Noise Control 
British Beer and Pub Association - www.beerandpub.com 

16. Fire Risk Assessment - www.communities.gov.uk/fire/firesafety/firesafetylaw 

This is not intended to be an exhaustive list of reference guides but is offered for 
guidance and may be revised. Where a proposed activity is not covered by the above 
every effort should be made to research current best practice guidance. 

Page  45



 

38 

Appendix 4 - List of Consultees 
 

Draft policy available on Eden District Council website from 
23 July 2020 to 15 October 2020 

 

All Council Members within Eden District 

All Town/Parish Councils/Meetings within Eden District 

All holders of Club Premises Certificates within Eden District 

All holders of Premises Licences within Eden District (some of whom are Personal 
Licence Holders) 

All responsible authorities as listed in Appendix 5 

Alston Moor Business Association 

Appleby Chamber of Trade 

Carlisle and EdenNorth Cumbria Community Safety Partnership 

Eden Housing Association 

Penrith Chamber of Trade 

Penrith Partnership 

Penrith Pubwatch 

Page  46



 

39 

Appendix 5 - Responsible Authority Addresses 
Original application and fee should be sent to the Licensing Section 

Copies of applications should be sent to the undermentioned responsible 
authorities, clearly marking the envelope ‘Licensing Act application’ 

 

Licensing Section 
Eden District Council 
Town Hall 
Penrith 
CA11 7QF 
 
Environmental Protection and 
Food Health and Safety 
Eden District Council 
Mansion House 
Penrith 
CA11 7YG 
 
Planning Services 
Eden District Council 
Mansion House 
Penrith 
CA11 7YG 

or 
Planning Services 
Lake District National Park 
Murley Moss 
Oxenholme Road 
Kendal 
LA9 7RL 

or 
Planning Services 
Yorkshire Dales National Park 
Authority  Yoredale 
Bainbridge 
Leyburn 
DL8 3EL 
 
Chief Officer of Police 
Penrith Police Station 
Hunter Lane 
Penrith 
CA11 7UT 
 
 

Chief Fire Officer 
Cumbria Fire and Rescue Service 
Cumbria County Council 
Carlisle East Community Fire Station 
Eastern Way 
Carlisle   CA1 3RA 
 
Children’s Services 
Cumbria Safeguarding Children 
Partnership (CSCP)  
117 Botchergate 
Carlisle   CA1 1RD 
 
Trading Standards 
Cumbria County Council 
Carlisle East Community Fire Station 
Eastern Way 
Carlisle   CA1 3RA 
 
Director of Public Health 
Cumbria County Council 
The Courts 
Carlisle 
CA3 8NA 
 
Home Office Immigration Enforcement 
Alcohol Licensing Team  Lunar House 
40 Wellesley Road 
Croydon 
CR9 2BY 
 
Health and Safety Executive 
2 Victoria Place 
Carlisle 
CA1 1ER 
(where the HSE is the enforcing authority for health 
and safety matters in the premises) 

Vessel - In relation to an application for a vessel, 
contact should be made with the Licensing Office.

 

Page  47



 

 

  Direct Communications Unit 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

Tel: 020 7035 4848 

Fax: 020 7035 4745 

www.homeoffice.gov.uk 

 
 
Linda.Watson@eden.gov.uk 
Ms Linda Watson 
 
 
 
Reference: TRO/0004517/20 
 

         6 April 2020 
 
Dear Ms Watson, 
 
Thank you for your e-mail of 6 March about the need to hold a hearing in the case of a 
personal licence application when there is an unspent conviction. 
 
You are right that when neither the police nor Home Office Immigration Enforcement issue 
an objection notice and the application otherwise meets the requirements of the Licensing 
Act 2003, the licensing authority must grant it. In such circumstances, convening a hearing 
would be pointless and is not required by either the Act or its regulations.  Therefore, the 
Recommended Delegation of Functions table in the s.182 Guidance should not suggest 
that a hearing is required in all cases.  We will amend that table when a new edition of the 
guidance is produced. 
 
Thanks for bringing this to our attention.  
 
 
Andy Parsons 
 
Email: Public.Enquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk 
 
 

Appendix B

Page  48

mailto:Public.Enquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk
mailto:Public.Enquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk


 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
EDEN DISTRICT COUNCIL STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY RESPONSE 
 
Punch Pubs Response  
 
Punch is one of the UK's largest leased pub companies, with around 1300 pubs 
across the UK. From the spirit of our local community pubs, the energy of our lively 
city centre hot spots and sports bars, to the warmth and calm of our inviting country 
inns; our pubs are the heart of all we do.  
 
We are a business of people that love pubs! With a mixed estate of high quality 
leased, tenanted and retail pubs, our years of experience have enabled us to 
develop a leading proposition for those wishing to work with us and run a pub 
business of their own. We provide industry leading, tailored business support to our 
Publicans and develop market-leading, flexible agreements and retail concepts to 
suit all aspirations. At the heart of the business is a working relationship between 
Punch as premises licence holder and the publicans running their own businesses in 
our pubs.  
 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is embedded across many elements of our 
business, from corporate fundraising to responsible retailing. We have dedicated 
teams in place to assist in ensuring that our premises operate to the highest 
standards. We strive to ensure that our pubs are not operating irresponsible drinks 
promotions or serving underage drinkers or those who are intoxicated.  
 
The Punch Buying Club, our online ordering and communications portal, also has a 
section dedicated to Risk Management providing our Publicans with a wide range 
of downloadable educational tools, advice and pub-friendly materials, which can 
be used pub managers and team members.  
 
As supporters of Drinkaware we do not condone irresponsible promotions and 
pricing of alcohol, and we have actively supported Drinkaware’s campaigns to help 
tackle binge drinking amongst 18 to 25 year olds. Responsible retailing forms a key 
part of our Publican training and we provide clear guidance on current legislation 
and best practice. We also support industry led initiatives to promote responsible 
retailing and are active members of industry trade bodies such as British Beer Pub 
Association (BBPA) and the British Institute of Innkeeping (BII).  
 
We are pleased to be able to contribute to this consultation, we have always prided 
ourselves with working with Local Authorities and Responsible authorities.  

Punch operate 8 premises within Eden District Council area  

We would like to make the following points some which are specific to the policy 
and referenced and some which are more general which we would ask to be taken 
into account.  

Appendix C

Page  49



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

RESPONSE 

 

Part 4.3: Prevention of Crime and Disorder  

The prevention of crime and disorder is one of the 4 licensing objectives and clearly 
a major pillar of licensing legislation. However, we have become increasingly 
concerned that licensed premises are sometimes being unfairly held to a higher 
standard when it comes to prevention of crime and disorder than other public 
premises. For instance, when Police present evidence of crime and disorder in 
relation to licensed premises, they will often include references to any crime that is 
associated not just with the premises in terms of its operation as licensed premises 
but generally. For instance, the Police will often include reference to all calls where 
those calls have referenced the premises as a local landmark which can include 
anything from criminal activity from people who have not been customers of the 
premises, offences in relation to taxis, or general disturbance and noise nuisance in a 
town centre where it cannot be said to be relevant to the premises.  

Premises licence holders will also often find reference to offences that are not 
relevant to the licensing objectives themselves. So, for instance, robberies at 
residential premises above a licensed premises are sometimes included. We feel it is 
important that the council recognise in their policy that these are matters that are 
not relevant to the prevention of crime and disorder licensing objective and that the 
licensing authority's expectation is that they will only be presented with evidence 
where it directly relates to the licensable activities being provided within the 
premises themselves.  

 

CCTV & GDPR  

We note that the policy does not make reference to the GDPR  

One of the most significant changes in recent times has been the change to data 
protection legislation introduced via GDPR. Whilst the obvious effects of this 
regulatory change relate to protecting personal data held on behalf of individuals, 
such as social media, mailing lists, email data bases and various other forms of 
storage of someone else's data, there are other effects that need to be reflected in 
licensing policy.  

For instance, the requirement for CCTV at a premises licence is not only expensive to 
install, but we question the value of such systems in terms of crime prevention and 
detection, especially in smaller community pubs. However, it is now commonplace 
for police to demand CCTV in almost all premises and to insist upon complicated 
and demanding CCTV condition's to be added to premises licences. In addition, 
operators of CCTV systems have to consider the GDPR implications. In particular, 
anyone who stores data, including CCTV footage of individuals, which is classed as 
data for the purposes of GDPR, must be responsible for its safe collection, storage, 

Page  50



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

usage and disposal. Handing over CCTV footage to Police officers in the active 
investigation of a criminal offence, such as a fight, would obviously be a legitimate 
reason for providing data. However, a condition with a general requirement to hand 
over CCTV at the behest licensing officer or police officer would arguably breach 
GDPR were it to be enforced. This means that there are numerous CCTV conditions 
on licences that would likely, were one to try and enforce them as they are written, 
cause an operator to breach GDPR.  

Similarly, club scan conditions need to be thought about in terms of GDPR and the 
obligations of the data holder. For instance, the time for which any data is stored 
and the purpose for storing that data needs to be made clear to people handing 
over their data. Again conditions that require such data to be handed over at the 
behest of an officer other than in investigating a criminal offence would in all 
likelihood breach GDPR.  

We feel therefore that this need to be addressed in the policy in order to ensure that 
conditions are updated to ensure compliance and that CCTV in particular is not 
being universally required where there is no real and pressing need for it. 

 

Part 4.5: Prevention of Public Nuisance  

We note the reference to ‘nuisance’ within your policy, instead of ‘public nuisance’, 
which is the licensing objective. The terms have very different meanings in law.  

The prevention of public nuisance licensing objective is to be widely interpreted, as 
set out in the Statutory Guidance. However, we often come across conditions 
imposed on licences, as well as the investigation of complaints that do not relate to 
public nuisance. For instance, conditions that refer to 'nuisance', rather than 'public 
nuisance', set a significantly higher barrier- one that was not intended by the 
Licensing Legislation.  

We also see this in terms of enforcement action where often enforcement officers 
will allege that a nuisance, often a private nuisance, has occurred and demand 
action under the terms of the premises licence. Clearly this is beyond that which was 
intended by Parliament and therefore we suggest that your policy reflects the need 
for public nuisance to be demonstrated and for conditions relating to nuisance to 
relate to public nuisance rather than any wider definition. In particular, we suggest 
that expressly stating that private nuisance is not a licensing objective would assist in 
all parties understanding what is and is not the remit of licensing legislation.  

 

Part 4.5.20: Tables and chairs outside premises, including garden areas 

External areas, especially gardens and enclosed spaces laid out to tables and 
chairs, are often attractive in their own right, as well as promoting businesses. Where 
they are on council land, they can be useful sources of revenue for local authorities. 
We would ask that your policy refers to any tables and chairs policy in place, with 

Page  51



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

links to where application forms can be found on the council website etc. Whilst not 
strictly related to the Licensing Act 2003, the council policy document is a useful 
guide to licence holders and the more information that can be provided about 
ancillary matters, the more likely it is that licence holders and applicants will use this 
resource.  

In terms of gardens, these are often essential to businesses to thrive. Premises that 
spend time and money making their pub gardens attractive places for customers 
should not be penalised for increased custom, albeit we recognise that this may 
cause some additional noise for nearby residents. That being said, this would not 
ordinarily be considered a public nuisance and therefore undermine the licensing 
objectives. Of course, where activities take place outside of the ordinary use of such 
spaces, such as regular regulated entertainment, or use late at night, this can tip 
over into public nuisance, but again, this would be a balancing act. We would ask 
that your policy reflect this situation so that all parties recognise that use of pub 
gardens by customers will not automatically be considered a public nuisance and 
require enforcement action even if complaints are received from residents. 

 

Part 4.6: Protection of children from harm 

We note that responsible authorities often request 'Challenge 25' as a standard 
condition. Many premises (especially multiple operators) operate Challenge 21 
policies and have training and signage for this. To change it can be expensive and/ 
or time consuming. As such, we would suggest that the licensing authority would not 
expect responsible authorities to suggest a adoption of Challenge 25 where a 
premises (or group) is already trading with a different challenge policy, unless there 
have been identified risks to children at the specific premises. It would assist if the 
policy reflected this. 

 

Part 4.7: Cumulative Effect 

We note that there are no cumulative impact policy areas identified, but that this 
will be kept under review.  

We understand that there are occasions where CIP's provide a valuable tool to local 
authorities in regulating the night time economy. However, our experience is that 
they can also be an impediment to businesses and the development of a thriving 
night time economy. Punch, as a promoter of entrepreneurship within our estate of 
leased pubs understands very well the challenges that small business operator's face 
when looking to enter a new market or adapt their offer.  

Cumulative impact policies can have the effect of dissuading operators from even 
attempting to get a licence. This unintentionally penalises operators considering 
smaller more novel applications (simply because of the prohibitive cost), often 
resulting in them looking to take their ideas elsewhere and thereby wasting a 
chance to develop a more rounded and vibrant economy in the CIP. For the same 
reason, such policies also promote ubiquity and stagnation as the only operators 
willing to take on the risk and outlay of applying in cumulative impact zones are 

Page  52



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

larger established chains with the financial backing to fight for a licence. Given the 
plight of the pub market 7 years ago and now the casual dining market, in part 
because their offers failed to change as the market developed around them, the 
use of CIPs needs careful oversight.  

 

Part 4.8: Licensing conditions  

Whilst Punch Taverns recognise the importance of conditions on premises licences in 
certain circumstances, such as to prevent or to mitigate the potential risk of certain 
activities undermining the licensing objectives, we have a concern that more and 
more conditions are being placed on a licence that are then enforced as breaches 
of the licence in their own right. Licensing authorities are obliged to promote the 4 
licensing objectives. Breaches of condition in and of themselves are an offence 
under Section 136 of the Licensing Act and on summary conviction can lead to an 
unlimited fine and/or up to 6 months in prison. It is important that this distinction is 
recognised in your policy and that breaches of condition in and of themselves are a 
matter for the Courts; whereas an undermining of the licensing objectives, which 
can happen with or without conditions being on the licence in any event, are the 
province of the licensing authority to deal with. We would suggest that this 
distinction is made in your policy as it will re-enforce the message both for 
responsible authorities and for operators who hold premises licences in your area.  

Punch has always been happy to work with licensing authorities in relation to 
conditions being imposed on a licence where they are necessary and proportionate 
to achieve an identifiable aim. However, we are concerned with the prevalence of 
standard conditions being used across all licences within any particular class, This 
has taken over from a proper analysis of the need for such conditions in the first 
place.  

In particular, we have seen a rise in conditions being imposed upon premises 
licences by responsible authorities, irrespective of the nature of the application 
being made. For instance, a variation to the plans attached to a licence to effect a 
simple alteration in layout and where there is no change in licensable activities, 
increase in customer area, or removal of internal lobbies, for instance, sometimes 
result in officers seeking to ride on the back of that application to impose conditions 
that are in no way relevant to it.  

The case of Taylor v Manchester City Council makes is clear that any conditions 
imposed on a premises licence when it is varied must relate to that application itself 
and should not stray into other areas that are not part of the application. It is 
important again that this is referenced in policy in order to prevent unnecessary 
hearings and often additional expense to applicants seeking to make simple 
changes to their licence but are then held to ransom by responsible authorities who 
know that operators are unlikely to challenge their right to impose such conditions 
where the cost would be send the matter to a hearing.  

 

Page  53



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

We submit that the imposition of large numbers of conditions on a premises licence is 
self-defeating. Premises licences form one part of a significant number of regulatory 
requirements that must be observed by publicans and this is often forgotten by 
regulators who often only think in terms of their one area of expertise. This means 
that they often do not see the wood for the trees. Policies that set out an 
expectation of long operating schedules or worse, require officers to object to 
applications unless the applicant applies their standard conditions, place an 
unnecessary burden on operators without necessarily helping to promote the 
licensing objectives. The City of London licensing authority, for instance, will only 
impose conditions if deemed absolutely necessary. It is not unusual to see licences 
with only a handful of conditions.  

The reason for this is that they expect operators to promote the licensing objectives, 
not go through the motions of complying with conditions because they have to. 
Also, licences grandfathered in 2005 would, likely have few or no conditions on 
them. We have seen no evidence to suggest such premises have undermined the 
licensing objectives more than "conditioned licences."  

We would challenge any authority to suggest that this approach leads to more 
issues with licence holders undermining the objectives. If anything this clarity of 
approach means that operators are freed up to adapt their businesses as the 
demands of the market change, freeing up officers from having to undertake 
lengthy inspections of licences and then having to send out enforcement letters 
relating to conditions that are breached in the observation without any real 
evidence that the breaches themselves undermine the objectives. This in turn frees 
up resources for enforcement against poorly behaving premises and dealing with 
unlicensed operators.  

 

Part 4.10.2: Minor Variations 

We would suggest that a little more detail is given in the policy in terms of clarifying 
for both officers and applicants what might be considered a minor variation. We 
would propose that the following bullets are added as a list of what minor variations 
can be used for: 

 small changes to the structure or layout of a premises and Changes to layout 
that do not increase the customer area (beyond a de-minimis increase of, we 
would suggest, 10%). 

 the addition of authorisation for late night refreshment or regulated 
entertainment (such as performance of plays or film exhibitions);  

 small changes to licensing hours (but see below on changes that relate to 
alcohol);  
 

 changes to hours for sale of alcohol that do not extend licensing hours for the 
sale or supply of alcohol at any time between 11pm and 7am or increase the 

Page  54



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

amount of time on any day during which alcohol may be sold by retail or 
supplied;  

 
 revisions, removals and additions of conditions (this could include the removal 

or amendment of out of date, irrelevant or unenforceable conditions, or the 
addition of volunteered conditions).  

 

Part 6: Enforcement  

We suggest this policy specifically provides a link to the Regulators Code. This is 
useful for all parties to licensing matters and recognises the important role that 
businesses play in local communities. It also sets out expectations. 

 

Part 6.6: council risk assessment  

We appreciate why a risk assessment has been undertaken and premises 
categorised as high, medium and low risk. However, this can be read as conflicting 
with part 6.7 which is the need (and indeed better method) to categorising premises 
as being based on the particular circumstances of the premises. Factors such as 
hours of operation, geographic location, neighbourhood, all play a substantial part 
in the calculus. A village pub, for instance, even with late hours, is likely to be less of 
a risk than a late night refreshment premises in a town centre next to a taxi rank. As 
such, we suggest that the prominence be given to this paragraph and not the 
generic risk categories above it.   

 

OTHER MATTERS WE WOULD ASK YOU TO CONSIDER REFLECTING IN YOUR POLICY 

 

Strategies 

We feel that this policy would benefit from a more details relating to Integrating 
other guidance, policies, objectives and strategies into licensing decisions. 

Licensing policies works best when they reference, and indeed work with, other 
council strategic plans and policies. For instance, planning strategies and local 
cultural strategies often inform applicants for either new licences or variations to 
licences as to what the council are looking to do in terms of promoting culture, 
leisure use and night-time economy uses in a particular area.  

Often it can be difficult to find these documents online and therefore reference to 
them and indeed a general statement that the authority will take into account other 
strategies is both a pertinent and of benefit to applicants and responsible authorities 
alike.  

Links to specific strategies, will also assist new potential businesses to understand and 
factor in the likely costs of entry into any given marketplace or area.  

 

Page  55



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

Planning 

We would also urge you to clarify in your policy that where conditions are stipulated 
on a planning permission, such as restriction on hours or activities, these do not need 
to be repeated in the premises licence, unless there is good reason to do so. Often 
conditions relating to extract systems, closing times of external areas, etc. appear on 
both permissions and on occasion they do not even mirror the other. This leads to 
additional and unnecessary expense for licence holders should such conditions 
need to be amended.  

On and Off-Sales  

Recently we have become aware that the definition of on and off-sales has caused 
some confusion.  In particular there appears to be confusion around whether an off-
licence is required for customers to take drinks outside of a premises, for instance 
onto the pavement, and consume their drinks there.   

We contend that such a sale is an on-sale. If one considers the nature of the offence 
of selling alcohol without the appropriate licence, it is clear that the intention is that 
the person making the sale is the one who would be charged with the offence, 
rather than, say, the purchaser.  Therefore, in selling a drink in an open container for 
immediate consumption, it cannot be argued that the publican has made anything 
other than an on-sale.  It is inconceivable that the law intended that should this 
person step outside the premises, or indeed take that drink away with him, that this 
would somehow transform that on-sale to an off-sale.  The terms 'on' and 'off' sales 
originate from the Licensing Act 1964. Analysis of the legislation (by reference to off-
sales) demonstrates that all off-sales had to be intended to be sold for consumption 
away from not only the licensed premises but any land associated with that 
premises or land immediately adjoining it for them to be considered an off sale.  The 
intention was to ensure that in a situation where a seller makes an on-sale, that on-
sale does not become an off-sale simply by means of it being consumed in the 
immediate environment of the premises, such as an unlicensed garden or on the 
pavement outside the pub.   

As such, we feel that this needs to be clarified in the policy.  We would propose a 
statement along the following lines:- 

"On and off-sales are defined by reference to the intention of the seller at the time of 
sale.  A sale in an open container for immediate consumption at the premises is an 
on-sale.  This extends to where the person who has purchased the drink at the bar 
and then consumes it either in a pub garden or on the pavement immediately 
outside the premises.   

An off-sale is a sale designed for consumption away from the premises and its 
immediate environs. This will usually be in a sealed container such as a bottle or can 
and the seller when selling that drink had no intention for the purchaser to remain at 
the premises to consume it". 

 

 

 

Page  56



 

T: 01283 501600 |punchpubs.com 
Punch, Jubilee House, Second Avenue, Burton upon Trent, Staffordshire, DE14 2WF 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
“Punch” and Punch Pubs & Co are business names of Punch Pubs & Co Limited Reg No. 3982441, Punch Taverns Limited Reg No. 3752645, Punch Partnerships (PML) Limited Reg No. 

3321199, Punch Partnerships (PGRP) Limited Reg No. 3989664, Punch Partnerships (Seagull) Limited Reg No. 11301804, Punch Taverns (Branston) Limited Reg No. 5596581 and Punch Taverns 
(Services) Limited Reg No. 4221944, each of which is registered in England and Wales and has its Registered Office at Jubilee House as above. 

 

 

Agent of Change  

Whilst we recognise that the principle is currently being debated in terms of 
planning, it is equally as important in licensing. We recommend that the licensing 
policy expressly recognises that developers of new residential developments need 
to protect their buyers from potential sources of noise disturbance, not expect 
existing licensed premises to have to adapt their offer to accommodate the new 
development. In particular, small pubs often rely on live or recorded music, provision 
of social events and other community based promotions, such as beer festivals, in 
order to survive and thrive.  

We have, unfortunately, seen a rise in complaints and reviews directed at existing 
premises that have often been at the heart of the community for over a century, 
from residents moving into new properties nearby. Whilst it is incumbent upon 
licence holders to promote the licensing objectives, it is iniquitous and arguably a 
breach of their Article 1, Protocol 1 human right to peaceful enjoyment of property, 
which includes their premises licence, to have their livelihood threatened and 
sometimes taken away because of poorly designed and constructed residential 
property built next door.  

 

 

 

Page  57



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page  59

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy
	Licensing Act 2003 - Review of Statement of Licensing Policy
	1 Purpose
	2 Recommendation
	3 Report Details
	4 Policy Framework
	5 Consultation
	6 Implications
	6.1 Financial and Resources
	6.2 Legal
	6.3 Human Resources
	6.4 Statutory Considerations
	6.5 Risk Management

	7 Other Options Considered
	8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation
	Tracking Information
	AppendixA.pdf
	Statement of Licensing Policy
	Eden District Council Licensing Authority
	1 Introduction
	2 Fundamental Principles
	3 Personal Licences
	4 Premises Licences/Club Premises Certificates
	4.1 The Law
	4.2 General Policy
	4.3 Prevention of Crime and Disorder
	4.4 Public Safety
	4.5 Prevention of Public Nuisance
	4.6 Protection of Children from Harm
	4.7 Cumulative Effect
	4.8. Consideration of Applications and the Imposition of Conditions
	4.10 Variation of Licences
	4.11 Provisional Statements
	4.12 Sexual Entertainment Venue

	5 Complaints/Review of Licences
	5.1 Complaints
	5.2 Licence Reviews

	6 Enforcement
	7 Permitted Temporary Activities
	8 Administration, Exercise and Delegation of Functions
	Appendix 1 - Table of Delegated Functions
	Appendix 2 - Appeals Procedure
	Appendix 3 - Guides of Best Practice
	Appendix 4 - List of Consultees
	Appendix 5 - Responsible Authority Addresses






	8 Revocation or Suspension of a Personal Licence

